Public Document Pack

Cheshire E@

Council%

Cheshire East Health and Wellbeing
Board

Agenda

Date: Tuesday, 24th January, 2023
Time: 1.30 pm
Venue: Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, Middlewich Road,

Sandbach CW11 1HZ

The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press.
Part 2 items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons
indicated on the agenda and at the top of each report.
It should be noted that Part 1 items of Cheshire East Council decision making meetings
are audio recorded and the recordings will be uploaded to the Council’s website
PART 1 - MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT
1. Apologies for Absence

To receive any apologies for absence.

2. Declarations of Interest

To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any disclosable
pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests in any item on the agenda.

3. Minutes of Previous meeting (Pages 3 - 10)

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 29 November 2022.

For requests for further information

Contact: Karen Shuker

Tel: 01270 686459

E-Mail:  karen.shuker@cheshireeast.gov.uk with any apologies



mailto:karen.shuker@cheshireeast.gov.uk

4, Public Speaking Time/Open Session

In accordance with paragraph 2.24 of the Council’s Committee Procedure Rules and
Appendix on Public Speaking, set out in the Constitution, a total period of 15 minutes
is allocated for members of the public to put questions to the committee on any matter
relating to this agenda. Each member of the public will be allowed up to two minutes
each to speak, and the Chair will have discretion to vary this where they consider it
appropriate.

Members of the public wishing to speak are required to provide notice of this at least
three clear working days’ in advance of the meeting.

5. Update on Cheshire East Combating Drugs Partnership (Pages 11 - 16)

To receive and update on the function and governance of the nascent Cheshire East
Combating Drugs Partnership.

6. Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2021- 2022 (Pages 17 - 32)
To receive the Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2021-2022.

7. Update on 2022/3 influenza season (Pages 33 - 38)
To receive an update on the 2022-23 flu season.

8. Update on development of an Integrated Care System across Cheshire and
Merseyside and in Cheshire East (Pages 39 - 48)

To receive an update on the development of an Integrated Care System across
Cheshire and Merseyside and in Cheshire East.

9. Cheshire East Health and Care Partnership update

To receive a verbal update on the Cheshire East Health and Care Partnership.

Membership: L Barry, Councillor C Bulman, H Charlesworth-May, Councillor S Corcoran
(Chair), D Frodsham, Dr P Kearns, T Knight, Dr L O’Donnell, Councillor J Rhodes, Dr M
Tyrer, M Wilkinson, Dr A Wilson (Vice-Chair), Councillor J Clowes (Associate Non Voting
Member), V Elliott (Associate Non Voting Member), C Hart (Associate Non Voting
Member), C Jesson (Associate Non Voting Member), K Sullivan (Associate Non Voting
Member), J Traverse (Associate Non Voting Member) C Williamson (Associate Non Voting
Member), | Wilson and D Woodcock.


https://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/council_and_democracy/your_council/constitution.aspx

Page 3 Agenda Item 3

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the Cheshire East Health and Wellbeing Board
held on Tuesday, 29th November, 2022 in the Committee Suite 1,2 & 3,
Westfields, Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ

PRESENT

Voting Members

Councillor Sam Corcoran (Chair), Cheshire East Council
Councillor Carol Bulman, Cheshire East Council
Councillor Jill Rhodes, Cheshire East Council

Louise Barry, Healthwatch Cheshire

Helen Charlesworth-May, Cheshire East Council

Mark Wilkinson, Cheshire East Place Director

Associate Non-Voting Members

Councillor Janet Clowes, Cheshire East Council

Claire Williamson, Director of Strong Start, Family Help and Integration
Deborah woodcock, Executive Director of Children’s Services

Cheshire East Officers and Others

Neil Evans, Associate Director of Strategy and Collaboration; NHS Cheshire
and Merseyside ICB

Mark Hughes, Senior Commissioning Manager

Guy Kilminster, Corporate Manager Health Improvement (attended

virtually via Microsoft Teams)

Sue Pilkington, Designated Nurse Safeguarding Children Cheshire and
Merseyside ICB

Dr Susie Roberts, Public Health Consultant
Karen Shuker, Democratic Services Officer
Emma Storey, Domestic Abuse & Sexual Violence Development Lead Advisor
24 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Dr Lorraine O’Donnell, Dr
Patrick Kearns, Dr Steven Michael, Dr Andrew Wilson and Superintendent
Claire Jesson.
25 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.
26 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 27 September 2022 be confirmed
as a correct record.



27

28

29

Page 4

PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME/OPEN SESSION
There were no public speakers.

CHESHIRE AND MERSEYSIDE INTEGRATED CARE SYSTEM
STRATEGY

The board received an outline of the Integrated Care Partnership (ICP)
Strategy which was due to be published by December 2022. The strategy
would be updated during 2023 - 24 to reflect updated Strategic Needs
Assessment (JSNA) information and revised national guidance which was
expected in June 2023.

The Strategy would be used to inform priorities which would have clear
implementation plans aligning to community engagement activities
between Place plans, HCP Strategy and ICB Forward View.

The draft strategy would be circulated to all stakeholders for comments
and feedback which would help form an interim document which would be
considered by the HCP Board at the end of December.

Board members provided comments and feedback in respect of

e Tackling the wider determinants of health — Board members felt that
these should include unemployment, mental health and housing.

RESOLVED:

1) That the Cheshire East Health and Wellbeing Board endorses the
approach taken to developing the Cheshire and Merseyside HCP
Strategy.

2) Feedback will be provided on any material changes recommended
to the draft strategy document, in order that the HCP Board can
approve publication of the Strategy on 22 December.

WINTER PLANNING UPDATE

The board received a winter planning update which detailed the plans that
had been put in place to manage the increased activity during the Winter
period. The plans been developed in partnership with Cheshire East
system partners across the place and considered the impact and learning
from last winter, as well as learning from the system response to Covid-19
to date.

The key elements of the winter plan included:

® Business intelligence modelling and forecast planning



30

Page 5

® Operational resilience

¢ Contingency planning

® Mitigations to address identified gaps

® Escalations triggers and appropriate oversight and assurance
® Modelling and Numbers

® Monitoring Performance

¢ Capacity and Investment

Members provided feedback and comments in respect of:

- Alert system discharge — could it be more effective in alerting the
public as it does affect people’s behaviour

- Alonger-term plan in changing the offer to the public

- The need to communicate to the public what is meant by virtual
wards, care at home and positive experiences

- The focus on stopping people going in to hospital is welcomed

RESOLVED:
That the Winter Planning update be noted.
CHESHIRE EAST HEALTH AND CARE PARTNERSHIP UPDATE

Mark Wilkinson, Cheshire East Place Director provided the board with an
update on the Health and Care Partnership (HCP) and NHS Cheshire and
Merseyside’s team in Cheshire East.

The HCP board had met in early November and would continue to meet
bi-monthly. A recruitment process was underway to appoint a chair for a
twelve-month period. The board was making progress on its structures
with a significant number of staff expected to be slotted into teams towards
the end of December. Since the last meeting of the Health and Wellbeing
Board Dr Andrew Wilson had been appointed as Place Clinical Director.

The key issue discussed was the reintroduction of maternity services to
Macclesfield District General hospital which had been suspended at the
start of the pandemic. The risks identified with this included staffing levels
and beds, which had been used for other patients since the maternity
provision had been closed.

It was noted that there was more work ahead to push for maximum
delegation of responsibilities to places. The Health and Wellbeing Board
would play a crucial role for setting the vision at the Cheshire East level
and addressing the wider determinants of health.



31

32

Page 6

RESOLVED:
That the update be noted.

CHESHIRE EAST DOMESTIC ABUSE AND SEXUAL VIOLENCE
PARTNERSHIP - HEALTH PATHFINDER TOOLKIT

The board received a report which provided an update on the key priorities
within the Domestic & Sexual Abuse Strategy that related to:

Health Settings — Applying the Health Pathfinder toolkit;

Complexity — The establishment of a strategy, including shared resources,
to tackle the most complex cases across substance misuse, mental ill
health and domestic abuse.

There had been a gap identified within the Health Pathfinder toolkit in
respect of the lack of provision for the IRIS programme, a specialist
domestic violence and abuse (DVA) training, support and referral
programme for GPs.

IRIS had been positively received elsewhere and board members would
welcome and support this model in Cheshire East to address the existing
gap in provision.

RESOLVED: That:-

The Health and Wellbeing Board endorse implementation of the Pathfinder
Toolkit and delivery of the recommendations outlined in the report.

LIVING WELL IN CREWE

The board received a report of the Cheshire East Increasing Equalities
Commission, a multi-partner group who had considered what would help
improve the health outcomes and life chances of the people in Crewe. The
report included recommendations for all partner organisations within
Cheshire East on approaches which could be considered to improve
outcomes for residents of both Crewe and the whole of Cheshire East.

Board members provided comments and feedback in respect of:

- There were much wider implications other than health to be
considered, for example, in the Place directorate, and should be
taken on board by all partners who work in Crewe.

- Whilst the recommendations were clearly supportable it was felt
that they were quite generic and could be more specific, and that
this plan should be seen as a launch pad.

- Whilst it was felt that Crewe was a good place to start, other areas
did need to be looked at.

- Whilst life expectancy was a clear indicator so were the years
people spend in poor health.



33

Page 7

- Whilst the plan was evidence based it was not a plan for action and
implementation, so the next step needed to be incorporating it into
the priorities and actions of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy
Delivery Plan.

- Resources needed to be identified to enable the actions to be
delivered.

- Sought assurance that the Health and Wellbeing Board would have
confirmation that the evidence base had been tracked and mapped.

Dr Atkinson and the team were thanked for the comprehensive report and
the board looked forward to seeing actions being put in place.

RESOLVED: That the Health and Wellbeing Board:

1. Note and support the recommendations within ‘Living Well in
Crewe’ report.
2. Agree that the report be used as a source document in the

development of the Joint Health and Wellbeing Board Strategy
CHESHIRE EAST JOINT OUTCOMES FRAMEWORK

The board received a report which outlined the multi-phased approach to
developing a Cheshire East Joint Outcomes Framework. This would be
used in conjunction with the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA)
and relevant integrated Care system and national tools to:

- Inform and monitor health and care transformation towards closer
integration and summarise progress in relation to the Place Plan
through a Joint Outcomes Framework

- Optimise primary, secondary and tertiary prevention and wellbeing

- Address inequalities

At Cheshire East Place level considerations included:-

- Phase one - Health and Wellbeing Strategy refresh and Place Plan
— focusing on the mid to long term outcomes.

- Phase two - Development of a Place-level delivery plan aligning
with the proposed care models.

Consensus was that the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2018-2021
priorities remained appropriate and that the additional priority relating to
children, which was outlined in the Cheshire East Place Plan 2019-2024,
should be added. Therefore, the priorities for the Joint Health and
Wellbeing Strategy refresh would be:

- Create a place that supports health and wellbeing for everyone
living in Cheshire East

- Ensure that children and young people are happy and experience
good physical and mental health and wellbeing



34

Page 8

- Improve the mental health and wellbeing of people living and
working in Cheshire East
- Enable more people to Live Well for Longer in Cheshire East.

A consensus building event would be arranged to finalise a list of ten key
indicators which would take place in the new year.

The board agreed that the approach was a good way forward and
although there were challenges ahead if it was done right then it would
drive forward prioritisation.

RESOLVED: That the Cheshire East Health and Wellbeing Board:

1. Considered the proposed multi-phased approach to developing a
Cheshire East Joint Outcomes Framework.

2. Considered the range of indicators proposed for Phase 1 of the
framework (Appendix C) and would contribute to a consensus
building event to finalise a list of ten key indicators.

3. Noted that shift in the Phase 1 indicators, which focus on very high-
level outcomes, is likely to be very gradual.

CHESHIRE EAST SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN'S PARTNERSHIP
ANNUAL REPORT 2021-2022

The board received the report which provided an update on progress
against the Cheshire East Safeguarding Children’s Partnership priorities
and its plans for 2022/23.

The annual report presented covered the period from April 2021 to March
2022 and related to the progress made against partnerships priorities prior
to a recent joint area targeted inspection (JTAI). Following the inspection,
the outcomes were published in a letter in September 2022. Key findings
and priority actions were included, along with the strengths of the
partnership. The Partnership accepted the findings and had publicly
apologised for the gaps in the collective work to protect children and young
people.

One area highlighted for improvement which had been identified as a
strategic oversight need was in respect of exploited children. An
independent person had been appointed to review the partnership
arrangements and make recommendations for improvement. An
independently chaired improvement board had also been established to be
responsible for the partnership’s written statement of proposed action,
scrutinising challenge, and improvement work.

The report highlighted the priority areas which included neglect, emotional
health and wellbeing and child exploitation. It was acknowledged that there
was a requirement for a fresh and more dynamic report and specifically
the voice of the children and young people needed to be stronger.



35

36

Page 9

RESOLVED:
That the report be noted.
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S PLAN 2022-26

The board received the Children and Young People’s Plan 2022-26 which
had been developed with Cheshire East Youth Council and the Children
and Young People’s Trust which included representatives from children
and young people, and staff from a range of agencies across the
partnership. The plan set out the partnerships’ ambition to improve
outcomes for children and young people over the next four years.

The board heard that following feedback that early help and prevention
was important to children and young people, an additional outcome had
been added to the plan.

The board welcomed the report and agreed that the voice of the children
ran through the report.

In respect of Members comments and feedback officers reported that

- The next action for the Children’s Trust Board which was co-chaired
with young people would be to refresh the terms of reference to
review how to articulate, demonstrate, monitor how it is held
accountable for its actions and outcomes. An action plan would be
developed which would be brought periodically to the Health and
Wellbeing Board.

- The young people’s voice on physical health would be taken back
as a recommendation

- The plan would align to the overall Health and Wellbeing strategy,
but as a standalone chapter.

RESOLVED:

The Health and Wellbeing Board endorse the Children and Young
People’s Plan, 2022-26.

CHESHIRE EAST MENTAL HEALTH PARTNERSHIP BOARD UPDATE

The board received a progress update on the activities of the Cheshire
East All Age Mental Health Partnership Board which included a pre-
consultation survey and face to face forums. Initial feedback from those
events focused on the wider determinants of mental health such as
employment, physical health, housing, and the cost of living.

Some of the key themes in relation to mental health services that arose
included more accessible, better information and promotion of services,



Page 10

entry criteria for some of the services, waiting times, more flexible service
offers, and crisis support around children and young people.

A draft strategy plan would be developed next year and would be brought
back to the Health and Wellbeing Board to be endorsed. There was a
request that the pressures as well as the positives be included in the
report.

RESOLVED:

That the update be noted.

The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and concluded at 4.10 pm

Councillor S Corcoran (Chair)



Cheshire E@

Council?

Page 11 Agenda ltem 5

NHS

Cheshire and Merseyside

CHESHIRE EAST HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

Reports Cover Sheet

Title of Report:

Update on Cheshire East Combating Drugs Partnership

Report Reference HWB 11
Number
Date of meeting: 24" January 2023

Written by:

Dr Andrew Turner, Consultant in Public Health

Contact details:

Andrew.Turner@cheshireeast.gov.uk

Health & Wellbeing
Board Lead:

Helen Charlesworth-May, Executive Director, Adults Health and Integration
Dr Matt Tyrer, Director of Public Health

Executive Summary

Is this report for:

Information X Discussion O Decision O

Why is the report being
brought to the board?

To update the board on the function and governance of the nascent Cheshire East
Combating Drugs Partnership

Please detail which, if
any, of the Health &
Wellbeing Strategy
priorities this report
relates to?

Creating a place that supports health and wellbeing for everyone living in Cheshire
East O

Improving the mental health and wellbeing of people living and working in Cheshire
East O

Enable more people to live well for longer [

All of the above X

Please detail which, if
any, of the Health &
Wellbeing Principles this
report relates to?

Equality and Fairness X
Accessibility X
Integration X

Quiality X
Sustainability O
Safeguarding X

All of the above O

Key Actions for the
Health & Wellbeing
Board to address.
Please state
recommendations for
action.

The Board is asked to approve the governance of the Cheshire East Combating
Drugs Partnership, including the proposal for the CDP to report into the Health and
Wellbeing Board

OFFICIAL



mailto:Andrew.Turner@cheshireeast.gov.uk

Page 12

Has the report been Presented to:

considered at any other - Adults, Health and Integration DMT — 12" December 2022

committee meeting of - Corporate Leadership Team — 11" January 2023

the Council/meeting of

the CCG

board/stakeholders?

Has public, service user, No — but service users will be represented on the Combating Drugs Partnership and
patient contribute to its work

feedback/consultation
informed the
recommendations of
this report?

If recommendations are The work of the CDP can begin in earnest once the governance structure is

adopted, how will approved by the board

residents benefit?
Detail benefits and
reasons why they will

benefit.

1 Report Summary

1.1  This report provides an update on the newly formed Cheshire East Combating Drugs
Partnership (CDP) and requests the Board to approve the proposed governance and
reporting structure.

2 Recommendations

2.1 To approve the governance and reporting structure of the Cheshire East Combating Drugs
Partnership.

3 Reasons for Recommendations

3.1 To enable the CDP to begin it's work and ensure accountability for delivery

4 Impact on Health and Wellbeing Strategy Priorities

4.1  Drugs and alcohol have a significant impact on society, including direct harm on individuals’
mental and physical health and wellbeing, and indirect harm caused through wider impacts
on society such as crime.

4.2  As a multi-agency forum tasked with addressing shared challenges related to drug-related
harm, based on the local context and need, Combating Drugs Partnerships have the
potential to contribute to each of the priorities outlined in the Joint health and Wellbeing
Strategy.

5 Background and Options

5.1 lllegal drugs cause far-reaching and devastating harm. Drug misuse currently costs society

over £19 billion a year. Drug use drives crime, damages people’s health, puts children and

OFFICIAL




5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

Page 13

families at risk and reduces productivity. It impacts the whole country, with the most
deprived areas facing the greatest burden.

Combating illegal drugs and the harm they cause is an issue which needs action from a
range of local partners. At a local level, success is reliant on these partners working
together to understand their population and how drugs are causing harm in their area, any
challenges in their local system and the changes that are needed to address them

The Government’s drugs strategy, From harm to hope: A 10-year drugs plan to cut crime
and save lives, relies on co- ordinated action across a range of local partners including
enforcement, treatment, recovery and prevention. The ten-year drug strategy requires a
partnership approach to delivering the following strategic priorities:

e Break drug supply chains

e Deliver a world-class treatment and recovery system

e Achieve a shift in demand for drugs

Combating Drugs Partnerships provide a single setting for understanding and addressing
shared challenges related to drug-related harm, based on the local context and need.
These partnerships have a named Senior Responsible Officer (SRO) who reports to central
government and hold delivery partners to account.

Alcohol is a factor in many drug-related deaths, alongside drugs including heroin and
methadone. In the night-time economy, drugs such as cocaine and MDMA are frequently
used alongside alcohol. Moreover, specialist treatment and recovery services tend to be
integrated for alcohol and other drugs.

The CDP will therefore ensure they sufficiently address alcohol-dependence and wider
alcohol-related harms alongside their focus on the use, supply and harms of illegal drugs.

A further local priority will be to understand and explicitly address the co-occurrence of
substance misuse with mental illness and other complex issues.

Functions of the CDP

5.8

5.9

5.10

To bring together the NHS and Local Authority leaders across Cheshire East area,
including representatives of both commissioners and providers of services.

To bring together and co-ordinate other major agencies, organisations, sectors and
interests that can contribute towards improving the strategic priorities of the Combating
Drugs Partnership.

To provide oversight of the development, implementation, performance and review of the

associated action plan of the Combating Drugs Partnership and additional actions
associated with the developing Cheshire East Substance Misuse Strategy.

OFFICIAL



5.11

5.12

5.13

Page 14

To provide oversight of the development, implementation, performance and review of the
Alcohol and Drugs Joint Strategic Needs Assessments (JSNA).

To ensure that the action plan and JSNA are used as the basis for strategic decisions and
the identification of priorities for the commissioning and delivery of services relating to
substance misuse.

To ensure a common approach to effective communication and the provision of information
about drugs is developed across the partnership

Membership of the CDP

5.14

5.15

Key named roles in the CDP include:

e Senior responsible officer and Chair: Helen Charlesworth-May, Executive Director,
Adults, Health and Integration, Cheshire East Council (CEC)

e Deputy SRO and Chair: Dr Matt Tyrer, Director of Public Health, CEC

e Partnership lead; named lead for overseeing delivery of local programmes and co-
ordinating partnership: Dr Andrew Turner, Consultant in Public Health, CEC

e Public involvement lead; named lead to ensure the voices of a range of members of the
public are heard: Katy Ellison, Commissioning Manager, CEC

e Data and digital lead — named lead on data, data protection, information governance
and outcomes measurement: Rhonwen Ashcroft, Public Health Information Analyst,
CEC

The wider membership comprises representatives from a range of departments and
organisations including: commissioning; housing; community safety; education;
safeguarding; NHS Cheshire and Merseyside; substance misuse service; lived experience
representative; Healthwatch; Cheshire Police; Youth Justice Service; probation service;
Cheshire East and West drug-related deaths panel.

Structure and governance

5.16

5.17

5.18

5.19

5.20

The Partnership constitutes a formal subgroup of — and shall report on a quarterly basis to -
the Safer Cheshire East Partnership (SCEP), where the Combating Drugs Partnership will
be a standing agenda item.

The Partnership is one of the specialist bodies linked to the Cheshire East Health and
Wellbeing Board and may report as necessary to the Board, or as requested by the Board.

The Partnership will report annually to the national Joint Combating Drugs Unit (JCDU).

The Partnership will work collaboratively with the Cheshire East substance misuse provider
forum and service user network.

Representatives of member organisations will be responsible for taking relevant actions and
decisions through their organisational governance.

OFFICIAL



Page 15

5.21 Local partners and organisations will contribute to key pieces of work as part of working
groups as required.

Safer Cheshire East HM Government
Partnership Joint Combating Drugs Unit

t t

CE Health and Cheshire East Combating
Wellbeing Board

Drugs Partnership

! !

CE Substance misuse i
. P CE Service user
provider forum network

Work to date

5.22 A small working group has worked on developing the CDP in line with government guidance
and deadlines to:

Confirm the geographic footprint of the CDP (Cheshire East)
Assign SRO and named

Set up a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment subgroup

Write draft Terms of Reference

5.23 Next steps for the CDP will be to:

Publish the substance misuse JSNA

Agree a local drugs (and alcohol) strategy delivery plan
Agree a local performance framework

First formal meeting January 2023

6 Access to Information

6.1 Background information relating to this report, including the raft Terms of Reference for the
Cheshire East Combating Drugs Partnership, can be inspected by contacting the report
writer:

Name: Dr Andrew Turner

Designation: Consultant in Public Health

Tel No: 07736278812

Email: Andrew.Turner@cheshireeast.gov.uk

OFFICIAL


mailto:Andrew.Turner@cheshireeast.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



2021 -22




Welcome from Independent Chair

Welcome to Cheshire East’s Adult Safeguarding Board’s Annual Report and | hope on behalf of the Board that you find it interesting and
helpful. Working remotely has become the new norm as we continue to meet as a Board via Teams with all the challenges that we all know
and love! That said we have continued to have excellent attendance and engagement by all members and you will read further down about
some of the topics that we have discussed and presentations that have been made to the Board. As the Independent Chair | have met weekly
with the Adult Safeguarding Manager and have felt fully aware of all developments and | pay tribute to Sandra Murphy for her leadership of
the team. All agencies have seen unprecedented demand on their services as the Pandemic progressed from wave to wave of outbr eaks and
adult safeguarding was no exception. The strong and effective partnership working across Cheshire East has enabled partners to work
together and to find new ways of responding to the challenges and | commend them for their response to this rise in demand and their focus
on supporting adults at risk and in need of action.

This last year has also seen the NHS (one of our statutory partners) prepare for a major reorganisation with the abolition of the CCG’s and the

creation of the new Cheshire and Merseyside Integrated Care Board (ICB) with a go live date put back from April 2022 to July. The new
arrangements are underpinned by the objectives reducing health inequalities and improving population health and by integrating health and
social care. There are nine Places (Boroughs) in Cheshire and Merseyside of which Cheshire East will be one. The principle of Primacy of Place
should ensure that Adult Safeguarding will remain for us in Cheshire East and continuing to work with all our partners.

You will see further down that we have commissioned a number of Serious Adult Reviews and the Board had training on the whole process by
Professor Michael Preston-Shoot, who is a leading authority on Serious Adult Reviews. His training was both insightful and helpful for all of us
and he also was the author of one of the reviews. We are extremely grateful for his advice and expertise.

Finally | express on behalf of the whole board our thanks to Katie Jones our Board Manager and to Claire Faulkner our board a dministrator for
their outstanding support and assistance

Geoffrey Appleton

Independent Chair

8T abed



THE BOARD Cheshire East Safeguarding Adults Board is required, under the Care Act 2014, to produce an annual report each year. The
report must set out what we have done during the last year to help and protect adults at risk of abuse and neglect in Cheshire
Fast

The work of the Board is driven by its vision that People in Cheshire East have the right to live a life free from harm, where communities:
- Have a culture that does not tolerate abuse

- Work together to prevent abuse
- Know what to do when abuse happens

What is Safeguarding? Safeguarding adults is about protecting adults at risk of harm from suffering abuse or neglect. It is recognised that certain groups of
people may be more likely to experience abuse and less able to access services or support to keep themselves safe

Who are we?

The Cheshire East Safeguarding Adults Board (CESAB) is a statutory multi-agency partnership comprising of Cheshire East

Council, Cheshire Police and the NHS Cheshire Clinical Commissioning Group. As well as the three statutory partners, the following organisations also are
partners of CESAB - housing, local Hospital Trusts, Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS Trust, North West Ambulance Service, Cheshire Fire, the local prison
plus probation trust, Healthwatch Cheshire East and the faith sector. The Board meets every 3 months and has a number of sub-groups.

The purpose of the Board

The overarching purpose of the board is to help and safeguard adults with care and support needs. CESAB ensure that locally abuse is prevented and that
partners respond when abuse does occur in line with the needs and wishes of the person experiencing harm.

Our aims

Working together and with adults at risk of abuse the board aims to ensure people are:

— safe and able to protect themselves from abuse and neglect.

— treated fairly and with dignity and respect.

— protected when they need to be.

— and able to easily get the support, protection, and services that they need.

6T abed

Our annual report tells you:
What the Board has done in 2021-22

What the data for 2021-22 tells us about Adult Safeguarding in Cheshire East

Using case studies, tells you about some of the contributions of partners to adult safeguarding
Our priorities looking forward

This report will be published on our website www.stopadultabuse.org.uk for all partners and members of the public to access
As required by the Care Act, this report will also be shared with the Chief Executive Officer and Lead Member at Cheshire East Council as well as the Police
and Crime Commissioner, Heathwatch Cheshire East plus Cheshire East Health and Wellbeing Board.

OFFICIAL


http://www.stopadultabuse.org.uk/

What has the board done in 2021-22? due to Covid-19 restrictions, CESAB continued to meet remotely over Microsoft Teams during 2021-22. The board

met quarterly during this period and focussed on the following themes -

Quarter 1 — 24 g 9
Tobacco & = £ PAIN
S -
 CRACK
Y B
S >
2 2DRUG ABUSE 8 S Toterance £ @ 03
Drugs and T S ALCOHOLIC L2725 e 80 S
=3 S 2 T_ 8 § Benzodiazepines § 0o
Alcohol Misuse: = Amphetamines QGHB =T ANXIETY

The July Board focussed on the local issues surrounding Drugs and
Alcohol misuse and the impact this has on local Adult Safeguarding
arrangements. The Board were joined by Mark Whitfield from Liverpool
John Moores University, who highlighted recent research in this area,
and Jon Findlay from Change Grow Live, the local provider of Drug and
Alcohol support services in Cheshire East

NEXT STEPS — The Local Authority’s Adult Safeguarding Team will
link with Change Grow Live to organise further training to frontline
multi-agency practitioners.

Quarter 3

Mental Health - A presentation was given from the Local
Authority’s Mental Health Team and by the local Mental Health
Provider, Cheshire Wirral Partnership NHS Trust. The presentations
focussed on Mental Health and Adult Safeguarding during the
panedemic.

NEXT STEPS — The Board made a commitment about education and FFI{
raising awareness of the mental health act so that all agencies have
a firm understanding of the act. The Quality and Audit Group will

DISCRIMINATORY ABUSE Quarter 2

The board were joined by the Gypsy and Traveller Liaison Manager from Cheshire
East and received an update regarding discrimination faced by the Gypsy and
Traveller communities in Cheshire East, and across the North West region. A
discussion regarding the difficulties this community were currently facing during
the pandemic was also held.

NEXT STEPS - It was highlighted that Gypsy, Roma and Traveller History Month
takes place every year in June and raises awareness of the Gypsy, Roma and
Traveller communities in the UK. The Board agreed to promote this month to
Frontline Staff and the wider public via its social media platform and newsletters.

The Quality and Audit Group will also conduct a deep dive review focusing on
Discriminatory Abuse in Cheshire East.

0z abed

also do a review of the application of the Mental Capacity Act in

Criminal Justice — The Board received presentations from the local Probation Trust,
the Police and the local Prison. The Criminal Justice Partners in Cheshire East gave
assurance to the board and demonstrated using case examples how partners are
committed to providing the most effective and appropriate safeguarding
arrangements in order to protect adults at risk within the criminal justice system
from abuse or neglect throughout the Pandemic.

NEXT STEPS — Partners are keen for the Criminal Justice
Partners to report back post-Covid 19 to give the Board
assurance of Safeguarding Practice post the pandemic




OFFICIAL

Quarter 4

T¢ abed



Adult Safeguarding Training

Following a successful bid for funding to retain the post of Safeguarding Training Officer through to
315t August 2022 this report highlights the work | have undertaken during the boards reporting period 15t April 2021 to 31t March 2022.

With the continued recognition that the delivery of face-to-face training would still be restricted, the funding bid for the Academic year Sept 2021 to Aug 2022 (not yet
completed) saw a target of delivering training to 600 learners from non-statutory partner organisations. This been set at the same rate as per the previous year.

The training landscape particularly within the care sector both care settings and domiciliary providers, remains extremely challenging for a myriad of reasons, not least due
to staff recruitment and retention. That said it is still important to make a training offer to these organisations and we have focused the offer in an intelligence led way,

taking information and concerns from both inhouse and external staff to focus my efforts on where hopefully we can make more difference.

This period also saw various restrictions still prevailing due to Covid and new variants emerging such as Omicron. Therefore, the training offer continues to be either face
to face where safe to do so or live via TEAMS.

The training offered in the main has continued to be level one basic safeguarding and to address some of the issues in relation to access staff | developed a bitesize session
which minuses staff abstraction, but which covers the key learning elements, to date this has been well received.

Recognising the huge risk to vulnerable adults a session has also been developed to raise awareness relating to scams and how to deal with them which is either delivered
as a add on or standalone session.

In total during the period 1t April 2021 to 31t March 2022, | delivered my sessions to 809 non boards partners and 204 statutory board partners giving a total of 1013.

As a final note | am also pleased to say that whilst this reporting period is out of sync with the academic reporting period, | can report that | have met and exceeded the
600 target as mentioned which puts us in a healthy position to seek further funding for the academic year 2022/23.

P Broodiruwrst
Paul Broadhurst - Safeguarding Adults Board Training Officer

BROADHURST, Paul

Z2c abed



Complex Safeguarding Forum: A forum dealing with those individuals residing in Cheshire East with Complex
Safeguarding concerns was launched in May. The Forum which is co-ordinated via the SAB Business Support Unit and is widely
supported through a range of partners including Cheshire East Adults Social Care, Police, Fire, Health, Housing and Substance
misuse representatives considers referrals received which require a multi-agency response to support those at risk of issues
relating to self-neglect, hoarding and various types of exploitation. The forum has scheduled meetings on a 6 week cycle and
agencies are encouraged to make referrals for those cases which identify individuals at high risk and require multi-agency
involvement. A copy of the referral pathway is available on the website www.stopadultabuse.org.uk

Prevention and Public awareness: an important role of the SAB is to raise awareness so that communities play their part in
preventing, identifying and responding to abuse and neglect.

Over 2021/22 CESAB produced regular newsletters and bulletin updates which were sent to all partners and
posted on the website providing information on adult safeguarding. The Board are also producing more
information in Easy Read format; this ensures it is easier for professionals, public and adults at risk to
understand safeguarding, how to keep safe and how to respond when there is a concern. The Board

continues to develop its social media presence across Twitter, Facebook, Youtube and Linked In g
«Q
9]
@ X
w
National Safeguarding Adults Week
National CESAB were proud to support National Safeguarding Adults Week in November 2021. This event
SGfeguarding is co-ordinated by the Ann Craft Trust. This year’s theme centred around ‘creating safer
cultures’. Due to Covid 19 restrictions, CESAB hosted a number of free online lunch and learn
Adl'“ts WEEk 2021 nts during th k. Th nt r Il attended with r 120 attend logging int
18 — 21 November 2021 events during the week. These events were well attended with ove attendees logging into
#safeguardingAdultsWeck the online discussions throughout the week. CESAB are planning some face to face events for
o cacalit byt 2022
OFFICIAL


http://www.stopadultabuse.org.uk/
https://www.bing.com/images/search?view=detailV2&ccid=e%2b4tv8Va&id=B4C3E0A8ADE164ABB0AE6783F4801616221CE61C&thid=OIP.e-4tv8Va1daYpWr6E3yO9AHaEp&mediaurl=https://www.programs-project.eu/wp-content/uploads/2018/05/newsletter-logo.png&exph=565&expw=900&q=newsletter&simid=608018435736274209&selectedIndex=4&adlt=strict
https://www.anncrafttrust.org/
http://www.stopadultabuse.org.uk/what-is-abuse/national-safeguarding-adults-week-2021-events.aspx
http://www.stopadultabuse.org.uk/what-is-abuse/national-safeguarding-adults-week-2021-events.aspx

Links with other Boards: in 2021/22 the SAB continued to establish effective working relationships between the other key partnership boards that have

oversight of work undertaken to support residents of Cheshire East. Over the last year we have worked closely with the three other SABs within the Cheshire area as well
as local multi-agency partnerships in Cheshire East such as the Community Safety Partnership, the Safeguarding Children’s partnership, the Domestic Abuse Partnership
and the Health and Wellbeing Board. The Chairs from the local partnerships have met quarterly throughout the year and the pan Cheshire Business Managers Group also
regularly meet, this has resulted in a clearer understanding of respective roles and responsibilities, improve joined up working between partners, reduced duplication, and
developed collaborative efforts to improve the resilience of Cheshire East communities, families, and individuals. The four SABs across Cheshire are working together to
look at the national recommendations around Safeguarding Adult Reviews and the learning regionally from our local reviews.

CESAB Support the Cheshire East Adult Social Care Conference — OCTOBER 2021

Cheshire East Adult Social Care hosted its Annual Conference in October 2021. In order to help everyone to understand the pur pose and process of
facilitating Safeguarding Adult Reviews and Domestic Homicide Reviews, delegates were joined by keynote speakers Prof Preston-Shoot, John Doyle and
Dez Holmes. Each gave an inspiring message to promote the importance of Reflective Practice and key messages about the use of Professional Curiosity,
Multi Agency Meetings, shared decision making, and comprehensive mental capacity assessments. Whilst also recognising complexity and promoting
individual’s wellbeing. Katie Jones, CESAB Business Manager also gave a presentation focusing on the Safeguarding Adults Review process in Cheshire East

Afghan Refugees: Cheshire East have like many local authorities

supported the Home Office by welcoming Afghan nationals who had to leave
their country because of the Taliban taking control of the country. The authority
has provided safe accommodation for many families whilst they await a move to
permanent accommodation. As part of the settlement process, during 2021, the
SAB'’s Safeguarding Training Officer, Paul Broadhurst, has visited the families and
talked to them about a wide variety of subjects, such as child safety, road
legislation, scams, hate crime. Paul is pictured here with some of the Afghanistan
nationals during one of the sessions.

OFFICIAL

vz abed



Information and Data

Performance and activity Information 2021-22

Safeguarding Concerns Of which 1413 were section 42 Completed enquiries (S42)

enquiries.
5039 An enquiry is what needs to ‘ The most prevalent.ab‘use types were
*referrals received b il h be looked at to confirm a NEgEEVACES RECISSIon(31%]
referrals received between April 2021 — March 2022 Physica| — (16%) o

person is safe Emotional/Psychological abuse (15%)

o o Most prominent location of abuse is
A m own home, followed by care home
settings
I II Crewe and Macclesfield had the
greatest number of referrals

Ratio of concerns recieved

MSP QOutcomes

FEMALE MALE
60% 40% In 83% of (_:onclude-d_section 42
safeguarding enquiries people
had been asked to express their
HIGHEST CONCERNS IN 18-64 AGE BAND outcomes.
32% LACKED CAPACITY Of those, 62% fully achieved their
outcomes. A further 34%

artially achieved their . /_\
oo t Cheshire East’

outcomes. ,
Council %

Data comparisons to the North West England figures
for 2021/22 available on request

OFFICIAL

G¢ abed



RNy
l’”’l}

Care Concerns 2021-22 \

Care Concerns Cheshire Easft}-g
3870 Council?

. i
Care Concerns received between Apri

2021 and March 2022

275 providers were

using the care concern process as
Care Concerns at 31st March 2022
Care Concerns
500
400 342 29E 368 394
274 261 ST
300 912228
200 1T | | | = = =
100 - Being able to look in detail at low
o B . — . . . e level concerns has been beneficial
A X 'S X 'Y 'S in
& H & O 8 ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ o
WSy &° &éo 0&}’ Ae,éc &6@ \,bo"'b highlighting where small changes
&R L can have a larger positive impact on

There are 19 areas of

concern

Unexplained
Followed by medication bruising is the
third most
common area of
concern (17%)

Falls are Errors (19%)
most common
(21%)

Helping people
oT Changes to - toremain as

referrals support plans independent as
possible

OFFICIAL

9z abed



What is a Safeguarding Adult Review (SAR)?

When an adult who needs care and support either dies or suffers serious harm, and when abuse or neglect is thought to have been a factor, Cheshire
East Safeguarding Adults Board (CESAB) may need to review what has happened. This is called a Safeguarding Adults Review. There two forms of
review, a Statutory Safeguarding Adults Review (SAR) and a Discretionary Safeguarding Adults Review (D SAR). A Discretionary SAR takes place
when only part of the criteria/conditions for a Statutory SAR have been met but the Safeguarding Adults Board feel there are multi agency learning
opportunities. These reviews are to see whether any lessons can be learned about the way organisations worked together to support and protect the
person who suffered harm.

Local update:

3 STATUTORY SARs

The Board received 8 referrals for a SAR over the last year; these were reviewed by our Serious Case Group that is chaired by Cheshire Police. The
group concluded that three cases did meet the threshold for a full Statutory SAR. Two of these cases are currently still being reviewed and will be
reported in the 2022/23 Annual Report, however one case is now published, This case was following the death of Mervyn, a hoarder who sadly died in
a house fire. The full report can be found on the SAB Website, in addition to a video from Prof Michael Preston-Shoot, author of the review:
Safequarding Adult Reviews in Cheshire East (stopadultabuse.org.uk) Findings from this Statutory Review are outlined on page 11 of this report

2 Discretionary SARs:
CASE 1 - focused on the welfare of a lady that self-neglected and misused alcohol. She also failed to engage with services

CASE 2 - focused on the self-neglect and the mental health of a young adult.

Both discussed included the impact Covid-19 was having on the ability of staff to monitor Self-neglect as closely. The cases also highlighted the
importance of joint working in cases of self-neglect. Recommendations from these Discretionary SAR helped to inform the pathway for the new Multi-
agency Complex Safeguarding Forum

Due to the pressures with the Covid-19 situation, CESAB issued a SAR Statement in April 2020 stating how SAR’s will be conducted during the
pandemic this included taking steps such as online meetings with slight extensions in timeframes. A full statement can be found on the website. This
was reviewed by the Business Management Group in April 2021 with an agreement to carry forward into 2021/22 whilst the post pandemic impact on
Safeguarding Services can be measured.

/¢ abed


http://www.stopadultabuse.org.uk/safeguarding-adult-reviews-in-cheshire-east.aspx

Key Findings from Mervyn SAR and Comments from the Independent Chair and Councillor Rhodes -

Background
- ‘menvyn’ died in haspital from serious bums sustainedin a
fire at his home. He was aged 86 and was White British. The
inquast recorded a verdict of accident.
- Cheshire Fire Service investigation found evidence of
significant hoarding. The only heating was an electric fire
that was hazardous in the context of his living situation.
- Cheshire Fire Service had attempted to complete fire
safety checks on six occasions from 2008. “Mervyn” when
seen would not allow access to the property. when there
‘was no answer, 3 calling card was left.
- His home was privately rented. His landlord raised
concerns about his living conditions, which resulted in brief
comtact with Adult Social Care. “Menwyn™ declined
‘assessment and support. His case was dosed.
- He had some contact with primary care for medication
reviews but plans to follow-up some concerns were not
Tollowed through.

0

Community Awareness
‘Mervyn” was socially isolated. The
conditions in which he was living were
barely known, other than to the
landlord. cheshire East SAB are raising
community awareness about sodially
isolated people who may be at risk of
abuse and neglect {including self-
neglect). This includes engaging with
the local authority’s Communities Team,
and, private & social housing landlords,
to ensure the local community,
including the public, have an
understanding of adult safeguarding
and knowledge of referral pathways

""Merwn’.

Complex Safeguarding

The Mervyn SAR" highlighted the need fora whole
systemn approach, including information-sharing and

" safeguarding
Adults Review

" 7 Point Briefing

Mental Capacity 0 2
s with the ‘Mervwyn’ SaR, self-neglect cases often raise
complex challenges relating to assessment of mental
capacity. In cases of self-neglect, the capacity to make some
decisions may remain intact. However, the capacity to
identify and extract oneself from hamful situations,
circumstances, or relationships may be diminished. A kay
ethical and clinical branch point in identifying self-neglect
involves determining whether the individual can both make
and implement decisions regarding personal needs, health,
and safety

For further guidance on self neglect and mental capacity —

03

Professional Curiosity
The ‘Mervyn’ case highlighted a need for
professional curiosity in safeguarding
adults with care and support needs.
Professional curiosity explores what is
happening within an adult at risks life

b rather than making assumptions or
accepting things at face value. It
requires practitioners to:

= think ‘outside the box’, beyond their
usual professional role, and consider
crcumstances holistically

+show 3 real willingness to engage with
adults and their families or carers.

o TR TR L E
Pt S

e Y

aratesufenarded:

WWW_SCie ong ul

icheshire East SAB will now regularly
indude case law updates in future
newsletters

- s’
Legal Literacy
The ‘Mervyn’ SAR highliphted issues around
Legal Literacy.
Legal literacy has three key componants:

use of multi-agency mestings to agnes responses to Care Acl

risk, including from t/Self-Neglect/

compulsive i 1. Sound knowl of the rules and
pulsive hoanding. It was clear from the data presented nu‘i“E:the' legal . )

CESAB have launched the Complex during the Mervyn SAR that the understanding ir relevande to practice.

Safeguarding Forum. Complex Safeguanding is
=n approach)term to describe working with
adults at risk to address non-traditional
safeguarding issues such as Self-neglect, and,
exploitation issues such as cuckooing, slavery
and human trafficking etc.

42 of the Care Act (2014).

Further Guidance and referral process -
s sioeadultabures o rg uly/odl imul
edisncecomales sl cluadiog. TS T

Section 42 Care Act 2014 -

A local authority is under a duty, by way of section 42, to make
‘enguiries (or cause to be made] if they reasonably suspect that an
adult in its area has needs for care and support and is experiencing,
«or iz at risk of experiencing abuse or neglect.

majority of referred adult safeguarding
concerns around self-neglect do not
|progress to an enguiry under Section

In Mervyn's case it is arguable that there was a missed
opportunity to refer an adult safeguarding concern
when he declined the Social Worker's offer of care and

2. Strong engagement with professional ethics.
3. Respect for principles of human rights,
equality and sodal justice

social Workers within Cheshire East
are encouraged to make full use of
the ‘Legal Gateway' meetings for
complex cases.

Ripfa hawe produced a
Legal Literacy Practice Tool
Making safeguarding
Personal practice toal:

legal literacy (local powv.uk

04

STOP 5ot  UNCLASSIFIED
ADULT
ABUSE

F1Q

The 7 Point Briefing on the left highlights the key messages from the ‘Mervyn’ Safeguarding
Adults Safeguarding Adults Review.

Councillor Jill Rhodes, Cheshire East Council’s chair of adults, health and integration
committee, said: “This is a very sad case that highlights the serious risks to individuals who
suffer from social isolation and self-neglect. | extend my sincere condolences to those who
knew this gentleman. He was 86 and died alone in a house fire. He was a known hoarder,
and this presented a serious risk in the event of a fire. It is a tragic case. The review, which
has been carried out by the Cheshire Safeguarding Adults Board, has provided an important
opportunity for all the agencies involved, including police, fire service and health service, to
analyse the circumstances leading to his death, to look at what could have been done
differently and explore opportunities to improve the way in which agencies work together
to protect people at risk. In complex cases, it is essential that those agencies work together
effectively, sharing information and supporting the individual to minimise the risks of harm

to themselves. This review has helped identify key opportunities for improving our multi- U
agency approach and our own internal processes. Cases of social isolation and self-neglect ng
are, sadly, on the increase and that, in turn, raises the risk of harm for individuals”. q))
N
(0 0]

Geoffrey Appleton, independent chair of Cheshire East Safeguarding Adults Board, said:
“Firstly, | want to pass on my thanks to everyone who contributed to the review and pass
on my condolences to those who knew this gentleman, who we have referred to as Mervyn,
which is not his real name. The aim of this review is not to apportion blame but to promote
effective learning and improvement to prevent future death or harm and to improve how
agencies work singly and together to achieve positive outcomes for adults and their
families. The report recognises the challenges that complex cases can present. There has
been an increase in adult safeguarding referrals where hoarding and self-neglect are the
primary causes of concern. These were identified as factors in this case. A number of
agencies had varying levels of contact with Mervyn over a period of years.
Recommendations include reinforcing a whole-system approach through multi-agency
training and procedures, and auditing cases on a system-wide basis. It is also important
that we collectively raise public and community awareness of the risks relating to social
isolation, self-neglect and hoarding, and how to raise concerns. The Cheshire East
Safeguarding Adults Board has a key role to play in coordinating the implementation of the
review’s recommendations. | would like to add that anyone worried about themselves, or
who knows anyone in need of help in this way to contact us.”




CASE EXAMPLES

Mike is a 67 year old man with a mild learning disability. He has always lived with and was cared for by his parents until they both died over the
last 3 years. He now lives alone in the former parental home. The kitchen floor is always wet from a leak in the roof. The house is dirty. The
house is cluttered with possessions and litter discarded on the floor such that it is difficult to walk through the house. Mike is incontinent, his
legs are ulcerated and weeping. Mike refuses to let family and professionals visit the home, but he does allow the Fire Service to come into his
house and do a routine Safety check. The Fire Service refer Mike to Adult Social Care. The Local Authority decided there is reasonable cause to
suspect Mike meets the criteria for section 42 enquiry under the Care Act (2014) because there is reasonable cause to suspect that Mike has
needs for care and support, is at risk of self-neglect, and there is reasonable cause to suspect Mike is unable to protect himself from self-neglect
or the risk of it. The safeguarding enquiries leads to some care provision and short term nursing input to help Mike manage his incontinence and
keep clean. This also leads to ongoing involvement with a voluntary sector organisation who are able to link Mike with a volunteer who identifies
some interests he has. Through work with the social worker, Mike has built a better relationship with his family and now allows his brother to
visit him and help support him with maintenance and repairs

Julie is a 33 year old woman, who attends the Accident & Emergency Department at the local hospital on a regular basis due to accidents and
injuries caused by drug and alcohol misuse. she has had numerous referrals to the Substance Misuse team from her GP and housing manager due
to falls, being at risk whilst misusing substances, risk from assault, being a danger to herself, plus she had been the victim of break-ins to her
accommodation and robbery. Julie was at risk to losing her accommodation due to anti-social behaviour from others that regularly visited and
frequented the property.

Julie was referred to the Complex Safeguarding Forum by her housing manager. Joint visits were arranged between the substance misuse team
with her family, housing manager and with adult social care. By working closely with Julie and with the support of her mother, she has been able
to continue with the leasehold on her accommodation. The housing risk factors identified have been greatly reduced from partners working
jointly with Julie. Julie continues to receive regular support from the Substance Misuse Team, but her use of substances is declining, and she is
engaging with all agencies on a more regular basis and is no longer regularly attending the Accident and Emergency Department

*Names and details in both cases have been anonymised, to protect identities

OFFICIAL
12

6¢ obed



FUTURE PLANS

Our priorities 2022-23: The Board recognises more can be achieved by working together in partnership and has
committed to the following areas for the year ahead, based on feedback, learning and analysis of current strengths.

Three Year Strategic Plan: Safeguarding Adults Boards have a statutory duty under the Care Act (2014) to produce and share a three year
strategic plan. The previous plan expired at the end of 2021. The Board will work with its partners and the community to plan ahead for the
next three years and publish a plan for 2022 — 2025. This plan will detail how we will work in the future to keep people safe. It will also reflect
on the lessons learnt through the Safeguarding Adults Reviews the SAB has conducted and the quality audits the board has overseen.

The Cheshire East Safeguarding Adults Board will continue to protect and prevent adults with care and support needs from the risk of abuse, or

neglect and support and promote their wellbeing, with all partners working together effectively, ensuring that the safeguarding system is
always improving through shared learning.

It will achieve this by
e Promoting person centred safeguarding (putting adults at the centre of our work)
e Strengthening system assurance (ensuring that organisations are working well together to support adults)

e Embedding improvement and shaping future practice (helping the organisations we work with to keep getting better)

All CESAB partners are dedicated to working collaboratively towards achieving the priorities set out by the
board. CESAB will also involve service users and carers throughout our work so that our work is always
informed by their experience and views.

OFFICIAL
13

0 obed



What do you do if a bad thing is happening to you or someone else?

Abuse is wrong. Tell someone.

Call Cheshire East Adult Social Care
0300 123 5010 (8.30am - 5pm)

e 0300 123 5022 (at all other times)

If you are hearing or speech
impaired, you can use Text Relay

)

If someone is hurt or itis an
emergency, please ring 999

If you are scared, tell someone you
trust who can report it for you.

Cheshire East Safeguarding Adults Board, First Floor - Macclesfield Town Hall, Market Place, Macclesfield, Cheshire, SK10 1EA.

email: Isab@cheshireeast.gov.uk

ﬂ www.facebook.com/CheshireEastLSAB i @CheshireEastSAB

www.stopadultabuse.org.uk

T¢ abed


https://www.bing.com/images/search?view=detailV2&ccid=4bKkYTR7&id=BCD23AF5D8B023C61410A7DDC5D6EB0985D47A49&thid=OIP.4bKkYTR78EDHhDGjRnekPwEsEs&q=speech+symbol&simid=608016205193806391&selectedIndex=6&adlt=strict
https://www.bing.com/images/search?view=detailV2&ccid=mKETnyTu&id=ACE117E501764C8E8AC8913C60355C1C5053671D&thid=OIP.mKETnyTuWl3N_f8I0YpjVwEsEs&q=speech+symbol&simid=608048473300470639&selectedIndex=51&adlt=strict,strict
mailto:lsab@cheshireeast.gov.uk
http://www.facebook.com/CheshireEastLSAB
http://www.facebook.com/CheshireEastLSAB
http://www.stopadultabuse.org.uk/
http://www.stopadultabuse.org.uk/

This page is intentionally left blank



Cheshire Ec@

CouncilZ

Page 33 Agenda Item 7

NHS

Cheshire and Merseyside

CHESHIRE EAST HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

Reports Cover Sheet

Title of Report:

Update on 2022/3 influenza season

Report Reference HWB 12
Number
Date of meeting: 24" January 2023

Written by:

Emily Kindred, Health Protection Officer
Dr Andrew Turner, Consultant in Public Health

Contact details:

Emily.Kindred@cheshireeast.gov.uk
Andrew.Turner@cheshireeast.gov.uk

Health & Wellbeing
Board Lead:

Dr Matt Tyrer, Director of Public Health

Executive Summary

Is this report for:

Information X Discussion O Decision O

Why is the report being
brought to the board?

Following the presentation of the Annual Flu Report 2021/22 at the September 2022
Health and Wellbeing Board, the Board requested an update on the 2022-23 flu
season in January 2023

Please detail which, if
any, of the Health &
Wellbeing Strategy
priorities this report
relates to?

Creating a place that supports health and wellbeing for everyone living in Cheshire
East O

Improving the mental health and wellbeing of people living and working in Cheshire
East O

Enable more people to live well for longer O

All of the above X

Please detail which, if
any, of the Health &
Wellbeing Principles this
report relates to?

Equality and Fairness X
Accessibility X
Integration OJ

Quality X
Sustainability O
Safeguarding (1

All of the above O

Key Actions for the
Health & Wellbeing
Board to address.
Please state
recommendations for
action.

The Board is asked only to note this update, mid-way through the 2022/23 flu
season:

- Summary of flu surveillance/prevalence to date

- Summary of NHS-led vaccination programme

- Outline of Cheshire East Council staff vaccination programme

Has the report been
considered at any other
committee meeting of
the Council/meeting of
the CCG
board/stakeholders?

Presented to:

- CEC Adults, Health and Integration Directorate Management Team (DMT), 12t
December 2022

- CEC Corporate Leadership Team (CLT), 11" January 2023

OFFICIAL



mailto:Emily.Kindred@cheshireeast.gov.uk
mailto:Andrew.Turner@cheshireeast.gov.uk

Page 34

Has public, service user, N/A — for information only

patient
feedback/consultation
informed the
recommendations of
this report?

If recommendations are N/A — for information only

adopted, how will
residents benefit?
Detail benefits and
reasons why they will

benefit.

1 Report Summary

1.1  This report provides an update of the 2022/23 influenza season to date, including a
summary of general flu epidemiology, the NHS-led vaccination programme and the
Cheshire East Council staff vaccination programme.

2 Recommendations

2.1  To note this update, mid-way through the 2022/23 flu season.

3 Reasons for Recommendations

3.1 Following the presentation of the Annual Flu Report 2021/22 at the September 2022 Health
and Wellbeing Board, the Board requested an update on the 2022-23 flu season in January
2023.

4 Impact on Health and Wellbeing Strategy Priorities

4.1 Influenza vaccination links closely with outcome three of the Cheshire East Joint Health and
Wellbeing Strategy (Enable more people to live well for longer), the commitment to take
action across the life-course from childhood to older age, and a focus on prevention.

5 Background and Options

General flu epidemiology

5.1

5.2

5.3

Following two years of very low rates of flu and other respiratory viruses, this season flu
levels appear to be back to pre-pandemic levels.

This re-emergence is likely due to (i) a relaxation in restrictions put in place to control
COVID-19, such as isolation, social distancing and mask wearing, and (ii) reduced levels of
population immunity due to lack of exposure to flu in the previous two years. Children under
two years of age are unlikely to have ever been exposed to flu.

At the time of writing, flu epidemiology appears to reflect that observed in the southern
hemisphere during their winter (our summer) 2022. Australia, for example, experienced a
OFFICIAL




Page 35

rapid rise in flu cases, which started earlier in the season and reached record-high
numbers. The majority of Australian cases were due to influenza A.

5.4  Data to date for the North West of England appears to mirror these patterns. Figure 1
highlights that we too are experiencing a rapid increase in cases, beginning earlier than
previous years, and dominated by influenza A:

Influenza A  Number of detections reported by North West laboratories by season
) (022/2023 — e—2021/2022 ==ee2020/2021 sssesss2019/2020
3000
2500
2000
1500
1000
500

O o AR LA,

- ta T e e e ——
27 29 3133353739414345474951 1 3 5 7 9 11131517 19 21 23 25

Number of laboratory detections

Influenza B

180
160
140
120
100
80
60
40
20
0

Numberoflaboratory detections

27 29 31 33 3537 394143 454749511 3 5 7 9 11 13 1517 19 21 23 25
Week number

Figure 1 - Detection rates of influenza A and B (source: UKHSA North West Respiratory Report, 22n December 2022. Data up
to week 50 [week ending 18t December])

5.5 National reports indicate that as of week 22" December 2022, influenza-like symptoms,
influenza outbreaks, flu-related hospitalisations and emergency department attendances all
continue to increase nationally?, with activity considered medium intensity.

Local flu vaccination programme
5.6  According to unpublished, interim data from the National Immunisation Management

System (NIMS), as of December 15" 2022 flu vaccine uptake in most age groups and
pregnant women across Cheshire East is broadly similar to this time last year.

1 UKHSA. Weekly Flu and COVID-19 Report w51
OFFICIAL


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1126555/Weekly_Flu_and_COVID-19_report_w51.pdf

5.7

5.8

5.9

Page 36

At the time of writing, the two defined groups in Cheshire East with significantly lower
uptake than this time last year are 16-17-year-olds at increased risk, and NHS and social
care staff. Nationally, uptake is lower in 2-3 year olds.

Cheshire East continues to have higher flu vaccine uptake compared to England and the
North West Region as a whole. However, uptake by ward varies widely, with lower
vaccination rates in more deprived wards, such as those in Crewe and Macclesfield.

NHS England has implemented a number of measures targeted at increasing uptake within
and reducing inequalities between specific groups:

2 and 3 year olds

This cohort remains a key priority both nationally and in the NW. NW initiatives planned this
season build on successful pilots in 21/22 and will target areas of low uptake and high
deprivation. Initiatives include: GP endorsed letters including an easy read version and
Urdu translated leaflet where appropriate; CHIS supporting invitations for GPs; GPs/PCNs
vaccinating in nurseries; school age immunisation service (SAIS) providers vaccinating in
nurseries attached to schools; key messages sent to 0-19 teams.

Learning Disabilities (LD)
Letter with resources sent to pharmacy colleagues to support flu vaccination in people with
LD and to organisations that support people with a LD

Other Initiatives

HIV test and treatment centres across C&M have been commissioned to provide
opportunistic flu vaccinations for HIV patients under their care following successful pilot in
Lancashire and South Cumbria last year

Diabetic Eye Service Providers have been asked to signpost clients and provide a leaflet on
flu as part of Making Every Contact Count following a notable reduction in uptake for this
clinical risk group in 21/22

Drug and alcohol service providers continue to be commissioned to deliver flu vaccinations
to service users

Additional data support has been commissioned to help target and evaluate initiatives for
the 2—3-year-olds and LD cohorts and monitor uptake in the at-risk cohorts

Cheshire East Council — Staff programme

5.10 Five staff vaccination clinics were held across Council buildings between September and

November:

Macclesfield Town Hall — Friday 23rd September

Adults, Health and Integration Conference, Crewe — Thursday 29th September
Crewe Municipal Building — Friday 30th September

Westfields, Sandbach — Thursday 6th October

Westfields, Sandbach — Friday 4th November

OFFICIAL



Page 37

All of these sessions were well attended, with a total of 492 vaccines administered.

5.11

5.12

5.13

5.14

6.1

Twenty-nine pharmacies across the borough have been accredited to provide Cheshire
East employees access to their free flu vaccination, using their CEC ID badge as proof of
eligibility. The pharmacies are well distributed geographically, in Crewe, Macclesfield,
Congleton, Knutsford, Alsager, Wilmslow, Nantwich and Poynton.

A further 18 non-NHS eligible vaccinations have been administered through these
pharmacies, bringing total vaccinations administered through the CEC-specific programme
to date to 510. This will likely be an underestimate of pharmacy use, as any staff who
attend a pharmacy are asked to complete a screening questionnaire; those over the age of
50 are then recorded as an NHS patient rather than as part of the CEC flu programme, and
we do not receive confirmation of their vaccination.

As we did following the 2021/22 season, we will distribute a staff survey to gain a better
understanding of how many staff overall received their flu vaccination from any source
(NHS, CEC or private) this season.

Regular updates and prompts have been issued in Team Voice staff comms, as well as an
updated Centranet page. Direct comms are shared with Care4CE staff via Care4CE senior
managers to encourage colleagues working with our most vulnerable residents to get
vaccinated.

Access to Information

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting the report
writer:

Name: Emily Kindred

Designation: Health Protection Officer

Tel No: 07533 551434

Email: Emily.Kindred@cheshireeast.gov.uk

OFFICIAL


mailto:Emily.Kindred@cheshireeast.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Cheshire Ecﬁ

Council%

Page 39 Agenda Item 8

NHS

Cheshire and Merseyside

CHESHIRE EAST HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

Reports Cover Sheet

Title of Report:

Update on development of an Integrated Care System across Cheshire and
Merseyside and in Cheshire East

Report Reference HWB 10
Number
Date of meeting: 24" January 2023

Written by:

Mark Wilkinson, Cheshire East Place Director, NHS Cheshire and Merseyside

Contact details:

Mark.wilkinson@cheshireandmerseyside.nhs.uk

Health & Wellbeing
Board Lead:

Mark Wilkinson, Cheshire East Place Director, NHS Cheshire and Merseyside

Executive Summary

Is this report for:

Information X Discussion X Decision

Why is the report being
brought to the board?

The establishment of the integrated system was a significant change to NHS
organisational structures with the explicit aim of further integrating health and care
service planning and delivery. This paper provides an update on progress.

Please detail which, if
any, of the Health &
Wellbeing Strategy
priorities this report
relates to?

Creating a place that supports health and wellbeing for everyone living in Cheshire
East O

Improving the mental health and wellbeing of people living and working in Cheshire
East O

Enable more people to live well for longer O

All of the above X

Please detail which, if
any, of the Health &
Wellbeing Principles this
report relates to?

Equality and Fairness [
Accessibility O
Integration OJ

Quality OO
Sustainability O
Safeguarding (1

All of the above X

Key Actions for the
Health & Wellbeing
Board to address.
Please state
recommendations for
action.

To note the report.




Page 40

Has the report been
considered at any other The report has not received any prior consideration.
committee meeting of
the Council/meeting of
the CCG
board/stakeholders?

Has pubilic, service user,
patient Not applicable.
feedback/consultation
informed the
recommendations of
this report?

If recommendations are
adopted, how will Not applicable as the recommendation is to the note the report.
residents benefit?
Detail benefits and
reasons why they will
benefit.

Report Summary

The report presents progress with the development of an integrated care system for
Cheshire and Merseyside and more specifically Cheshire East. Good progress has been
made in setting up partnership governance and our focus is now moving to planning —
specifically likely the challenging context for 2023/24.

Recommendations

To note the report.

Reasons for Recommendations

The report provides update information on the establishment of an integrated care system
regionally and locally.
Impact on Health and Wellbeing Strategy Priorities
The closer and more joined up working of health and care services will support the

achievement of those health and wellbeing strategy priorities that can be delivered by
health and care organisations including in our role as anchor institutions.

Page 2 of 9




Page 41
Key Points

The integrated care system across Cheshire and Merseyside

The integrated care system comprises the integrated care board, and the integrated care
partnership - possibly confusingly called the health and care partnership (HCP).

The HCP has held its initial meeting. All nine local authorities are represented on it, and the
chair is the leader of Cheshire West and Chester Council. At its next meeting it will be
asked to approve an interim strategy for publication. This will be followed by a five-year joint
forward plan.

The draft forward plan will be ready at the end of March, with formal publication scheduled
for end June. In the intervening three months all health and well-being boards will be asked
to support the plan.

Just before Christmas the NHS published its annual planning guidance to the NHS. The
three overarching themes are to:

e Recover our core services and improving productivity.
e Make progress in delivering key NHS long term ambitions.
e Continue transforming the NHS for the future.

A summary of the planning guidance on a page is attached in appendix A.

Winter pressures, Covid, higher than usual numbers of patients with flu, and industrial
action have all combined to present health and care services with some of the greatest
challenges ever seen. These challenges are reflected locally.

The Cheshire East health and care partnership

Following an inclusive selection process Isla Wilson has been appointed to chair the health
and care partnership board, with Councillor Jill Rhodes serving as vice-chair — both for
2023.

Place governance arrangements are now set, with all groups formally established and
meeting on a regular basis. Former CCG staff are currently going through a slotting in or
ring fence process to determine whether they will be working at a place, pan multiple
places, or at a Cheshire and Merseyside level. A description of current groups and
committees within the partnership is provided in appendix B.

In November 2022 the partnership received additional non-recurrent money — directed via
health and social care — to support the accelerated discharge of medically optimised
patients from hospital. The recent focus has been to confirm that all approved schemes
have been mobilised, and more importantly that the desired impact is being achieved.
Although it is still early days, there are positive signs of reductions in the numbers of
patients in hospitals who remain as inpatients despite being medically optimised for
discharge, and also emergency department attendances. See appendix C. Monitoring will
continue over the next few months.

The Place leadership group have confirmed their commitment to working at a
neighbourhood level, which in Cheshire East means our eight care communities.

Page 3 of 9



Page 42

Access to Information

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting the report writer:

Name: Mark Wilkinson

Designation: Cheshire East Place Director, NHS Cheshire and Merseyside
Tel No: Not applicable

Email: mark.wilkinson@cheshireandmerseyside.nhs.uk

Page 4 of 9



Page 43

Appendix A - 2023/24 Planning guidance and priorities: Brief guide from NHS
England — December 2022

To help provide certainty for local health and care teams, NHS England has published its
annual Priorities and Operational Planning Guidance. ICBs are asked to work with system
partners to develop plans to meet the objectives set out in this guidance before the end of
March 2023.

The 2023/24 planning guidance sets out three core priorities informed by three underlying
principles:

Core priorities

Recovering our core services and improving productivity

Make progress in delivering the key NHS Long Term Plan ambitions
Continue transforming the NHS for the future

Underlying principles

Smaller number of national objectives which matter most to the public and patients
More empowered and accountable local systems

NHSE guidance focused on the “why” and “what”, not the “how”

Headline ambitions for recovering our core services and improving productivity
Improve ambulance response and A&E waiting times.

Reduce elective long waits and cancer backlogs, and improve performance against the core
diagnostic standard.

Make it easier for people to access primary care services, particularly general practice.

Recovering productivity and improving whole system flow are critical to achieving these
objectives, and we must collectively address the challenge of staff retention and attendance.
Throughout all the above will be a focus on narrowing health inequalities in access,
outcomes and experiences, and maintaining quality and safety in our services, particularly
in maternity services.

Delivering the key Long Term Plan ambitions and transforming the NHS

We need to create stronger foundations for the future, with the core goals of the NHS Long
Term Plan our ‘north star’. These include our commitments to:

* Improve mental health services and services for people with a learning disability and
autistic people.

+ Continue to support delivery of the primary and secondary prevention priorities and the
effective management of long-term conditions.

» Ensure that the workforce is put on a sustainable footing for the long term, including
publication of a NHS Long Term Workforce Plan.

* Level up digital infrastructure and drive greater connectivity, including development of the
NHS App to help patients to identify their needs and get the right care in the right setting.

Local empowerment and accountability

ICSs are best placed to understand population needs and are expected to agree specific
local objectives that complement the national NHS objectives. As set out in Operating
Framework, NHS England will continue to support the local NHS [integrated care boards
(ICBs) and providers] to deliver their objectives and publish information on progress against
the key objectives set out in the NHS Long Term Plan.

Funding and planning assumptions

Page 5 of 9



Page 44

The Autumn Statement 2022 announced an extra £3.3 billion in both 2023/24 and 2024/25
for the NHS to respond to the significant pressures we are facing. We are issuing two-year
revenue allocations for 2023/24 and 2024/25. At national level, total ICB allocations
[including COVID-19 and Elective Recovery Funding (ERF)] are flat in real terms with
additional funding available to expand capacity. Core ICB capital allocations for 2022/23 to
2024/25 have already been published and remain the foundation of capital planning for
future years. ICBs and NHS primary and secondary care providers are expected to work
together to plan and deliver a balanced net system financial position in collaboration with
other ICS partners.

Further reading

Full planning guidance documents and supporting guidance can be read here on the NHS
England website.

Page 6 of 9



o o)
Cheshire East "/ Cheshire and Merseyside

Council?

CHESHIRE EAST HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
Reports Cover Sheet

Appendix B — Health and Care Partnership Boards and Groups

e NHS

Cheshire and Merseyside

Govemnance/Operating Model Key mm

)

]
b+
i
H
2
z
5
3
oo
i
i
=

Strategic
Triangulation

Operational

_____ -[ r_'?[‘_EE‘EE'E*_”_ L Programme Delivery

| e T Group (PDG)

T ' #BecauseWeCare
Operational Planning 2023/24 Cheshire East Partnership

Gy abed



Appendix C — Accelerating Discharges: Initial Performance

UEC metrics — Average daily type 1 A&E attendances — East and Mid trusts

11} 12} {3y 14 15}
I I |

lan Feb MWar Aor Moy Jun Jul Aug Sop Oor Now Doc lan Reb MWar Aor Moy dun Jul Sug Sep Oor MNow Do lan Reb War Aor Moy Jun Jul Sug Sep Oor Mow Doc | lan Reb ar

ki) ikl

I mz

L

December 2022
Actual: 386.5
Trajectory for 10%
reduction: 365.0

— L
e T A 1B DO

—TiEger Ay 156 reducion

e T iy, 3 reduciion

Data Sounoe:

Trust dewel dally sirep
ubimissions. As such 2l pains
amending East or Midoruss are
inchudad, not just those nesidert
ar registenad inCheshie Bt
place.

Initiatives aimed at reducing ARE attendances
Footprint: both providers (black); Ezst (bluee); Wid (gresn).

(1) Auguet 222 - exieting operational Homs First ssrvicas
= NHS 111

*  Mertal Health Crisis Line Assessment Services
s Aporae Direcory of Services (D0S)

» CoredCE Mabile rights

- Ca'nrnmf'.- 2-hour Cnssﬂm

Pnrna-,.' ﬂ'ld C.-\:|'n|'nl.|1‘t".I C.ﬂ T-u.rns N

Care Home Suppord Service - provided by $he End of Life Parinership
Advanoed Demnmenfa Support Service - pravided by e End of Life Partnership
Care communifies  affer

R

(2} Novembsr 2022 -new Interventions (with all of the above continuing)
= 9 - High imensity Support Workers ECT & MCHFT
« 28 - Rough Seepers pafway operaiorsd

{:p Decambsr 22?2 - new Intsrventions [with il of the above continuing)
WWAS process o be agreed.  Objecive, UCR ke calls from e stack and becomae e first

responcker o flls in fe community whers approprise.
= Wirter Access Fund for Primary Care

» Coingency budget for marked restruchring and framsport. - ol oost support for core &t home

ok

» Aggrowed Meriad Healdh Procifoners Cower, evenings & weslends for ECT and MCHFT

(4) January 2023 - new Intsrventions (with all of the above continuing)
+ CoaedCE mabile nights servios o support people at home during dhe night

= Merdal Hoaldh Restfemnent - Rapid Resporse Servios
« Chollenging befudiowr traning for Care Homes

{ﬂ F-brlnj II - new Irltmurlhnrn {vltn all of the above continuing)

Page 8 of 9

ot abed



UEC metrics — Average daily number not meeting criteria to reside excluding discharges — East and Mid trusts

-

E

:

=10

oo
ln R Mar bApr Moy Jun Jul Aug Sp Ox

Prars

(E R IR T L ) M’T!"‘“m

Trajectary for 40%
I reduction: 1847

— 12

s, T A 01 T IO

Tjciony: o 30% mducion

— TR Ay i 0% rducBon

|
| [eTp—
Tt duily sitng whmasioes
| A sk alll paiert gt dirg Sad o
n  Feb Mar Wid Bt s indhuadied, pot el
Faznm nouder | ur nggn il
0T 0 Chanbing faut place

=p

|
|
[
|
|
1
|
|
|
g

Mow Dac |l Feb Mar Ao Moy un

Initiatives aimed at reducing tn‘l:dmgl volumss
Footprint: both providers (bBladk); Bt (o) 4 x|

l."l] Auguct 2022 - sxicling opsrational Homs Firc candoss
Pzl H_n.'lﬂ'th.‘H:lm‘t

= Commianiby Raabiomant
+  Raid Riespords Tans Via Routes and Ewdving Cane - SoppoetHosniil

rits Hospkal Dis dhange

=+ Fesilieros Bads bosuppot P cischanges

= Wirbual Wards Home O makry

=+  Bish Fed Choss diechange bohome soirvion

+ Posona Healh Budiets bo support dischames

-+ Carers Paymerts D fadksbe repddds dhame

=+ B Pauds Hodtal Diechange Support choll waned wia ooy Viollinkary
-y

(2) Baplembar H022 . naw Inderventions (with all of the above condinuing)
=+ ISR« dniani 2 e bac DRy O b el poink of oS change
=+ S < Cormmuni by Conneedions degd oped o Trarsfer of Cane Hub
- 5H'| Mm'ﬂukﬁ:dqﬂo‘ad:mTﬂnn‘wdFWnﬂs
N - Brlviging Flacemenis o Cane ok ag b B Fiaaiissar
- 12th mnmtmmtamnmm
=+ dih - Communi iy Voluntary Servioes B8 Mdnacls & EtF s suppat
=+ EBL in neach suppo® for MH pal anis conirandt aobeimchod

e fus ks Ranks o2 linked o Home Fist Ocopaton Thermoy Mol
riad fssess menk Trerpy Fat (Fisdey Hase, Mecdestdd| o

%) Dodobar DOEE - new Indervartionc (with sl of e sbows sontinulng) -

+ 1TH - Caaners Fiiot Laurdheed MCHFT SR [l ok sais B0 AR Mo
= Wirual Wald o supeoet Fag o o sohanme = Mlala oy Unll 48 ek | o Fisaiey Hosa, MardesTaid, b chaliengng
+ Owersaas @l ol commundy capa by Chan shed Cana nciia | L

- ED Markal Hodth b read spacielst Suppat Wiakens 5o support peopks
M]mrm e rim romryiionic. (with aill of e sbooss comndinulng) el Brg i scharme

25 - AT S prman® bobea ioatad in Trarsher of Cang Hubs Eheoitl Sty Dol T Supnat O sohanges
= ZEE- Wuwmmmmmmmm~ e PooRs B0 el capac iy | el SR el arkiad

T days
- ZE - Remohe Cares pawmant oer (8 Jarusry 202 — new Inferesndionc (i all of B mbovs coniinuing)
+  ZEn - OEL - Dnag and Sooned Sord o ke o rars b of g +  Increasa Goneral Norsng fssstant Capacky cane 2t romavia JCICF

= Trarsterof Cang Hub, Murses and 2aiilonal Sodal Wiorkes 0o Supaot

ﬁlmrm e Irvim rssrriionic (wih &l of e absoes oomiinuing) dschﬁ‘gﬁMdE:‘i’:dehﬁDlﬂ

Exparsion of nespimbony Vinual Wads * sl 1 5 D oW SmEotiend ivineg 1ats 141 s

- Assistee Tedhnoiogy & Gantry Hoists © redue doutie herding cane - siow Wanr 5 genaal ursing beds, Hanning Hall © genaral
packanes

- Emengency Housing eacammodalion for prevend on and o sdhange o
Feoiad s e | Oritesr:

= Housing Grank b Suppot Cwerseas S racnalmant i euking = Addtonal O sonang Coondi Rl B0 Work ROt neina oS et Tmady
oS Saned moviders dischane and oezte low

= Hospital Disdhangs Premium Paymand & Preserton Sdhema = Housing Suppot and Fsooweny Innesdh supno o OWF wand o fadiRie

= Agddonal Rospkal ansno SOl e A Svanings Wk dschans

- Agdional mmcmnmsmmu hi=n

- '\-'-.'\. (el sl B0 S LT Mt 1ﬂ-"- -"

* MMMTMtEHmmWEGT&MH-FT
=Hospital s denge So-Ondinatons K2 ECT &x2 MCHFT
=East Crashing Thaes addtonad O suppat

Page 9 of 9

) abed



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous meeting
	5 Update on Cheshire East Combating Drugs Partnership
	6 Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2021- 2022
	7 Update on 2022/3 influenza season
	8 Update on development of an Integrated Care System across Cheshire and Merseyside and in Cheshire East

